
Page 1 BOC/STAFF/09/20/2011

STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING, ROOM 113
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2011

3:00 P.M.

Commissioners Present: Deb Schorr, Chair
Bernie Heier, Vice Chair
Brent Smoyer
Jane Raybould

Commissioners Absent: Larry Hudkins

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

The Chair opened the meeting at 3:02 p.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER
15, 2011 STAFF MEETING

MOTION: Heier moved and Smoyer seconded approval of the minutes of the
September 15, 2011 Staff Meeting.  Smoyer, Heier, Raybould and Schorr
voted aye.  Hudkins was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0. 

 2 ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Legal Opinion Regarding the “20-Acre Rule” for Acreages
B. Correspondence Regarding a Motocross Racetrack on West Wittstruck

Road (Exhibit A)
C. Report on the Chair and Vice Chair’s Meeting with the County

Engineer

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Heier seconded approval of the additions to the
agenda.  Raybould, Heier, Smoyer and Schorr voted aye.  Hudkins was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0. 



Page 2 BOC/STAFF/09/20/2011

 3 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE - Sara Hartzell, Planner; Marvin
Krout, Planning Director

Sara Hartzell, Planner, presented a summary of the Draft 2040 Lincoln-Lancaster
County Comprehensive Plan (LPlan 2040) (Exhibit B).  She also gave an overview of
the Comprehensive Plan by each chapter:

Chapter 1 Vision and Plan

This chapter is an executive summary of the plan and contains the City and County
land use maps and growth tiers maps.

Chapter 2 The Community

This chapter contains a brief history, growth projections, and guiding principals for
community form.  It also includes language to reflect the work of the Nebraska
Innovation Zone Commission (NIZC) (see Page 2.2).

Chapter 3 Environmental Resources

Local food was added to this chapter as a resource feature for the County (see Page
3.11).  Additional language was added to the Greenways and Open Spaces section and
the Haines Branch Corridor, from Pioneers Park through the Village of Denton and
ending at Spring Creek Prairie, is highlighted (see Pages 3.14-3.25).

Chapter 4 Placemaking

A new chapter was added defining the unique aspects of the community and how to
highlight those features.

Chapter 5 Business and Economy

This chapter discusses future employment and industries.  Additional language was
added to emphasize the role that agriculture plays in Lancaster County’s economy (see
Page 5.4).

Heier said the County recently adopted a “10-acre rule” to allow for businesses outside
the incorporated towns and asked how that would fit with the language.  Hartzell said
it is addressed in the third bullet, which states: Continue to encourage and permit
accessory home businesses, and locate businesses within the commercial areas of
incorporated towns as they expand beyond the definition of home occupation.



Page 3 BOC/STAFF/09/20/2011

Heier referred to language on Page 5.5 which states: It is the policy that Commercial
and Industrial Centers in Lancaster County be located within the City of Lincoln or
incorporated Villages.  He said he would not want to pass-up opportunities for
industrial/commercial development in the County and suggested at the September 15th

Staff Meeting that consideration be given to commercial/industrial development at
162nd Street and Highway 2 (commonly known as the Bennet Corner).  Hartzell said
language on Page 5.18 addresses the need to be prepared for potential large employer
opportunities that couldn’t be accommodated within a town.  Marvin Krout, Planning
Director, added that specific sites have been identified that have potential advantages,
such as rail access (see Map on Page 1.8).  He cautioned that it will be expensive to
provide infrastructure to those sites.

Chapter 6 Mixed Use Redevelopment

This new chapter discusses the concept of mixed use redevelopment.

Smoyer asked whether it would limit the ability of businesses to grow, citing the
downtown corridor as an example.  Hartzell said she believes it will open new markets
by creating businesses around residential populations.

Chapter 7 Neighborhoods and Housing

Language from the “Guiding Principals for Rural Areas” section of the 2030
Comprehensive Plan is included but has been reformatted.  Hartzell said the Planning
Department will prepare a resolution to amend the Plan to remove the following
language at the request of the Board (see Page 7.13): Consider all proposals for new
acreage development in undesignated areas at one time as part of the Comprehensive
Plan Annual Review. 

Heier said he would like to see the following language deleted on Page 7.12: For areas
outside of the Lincoln three mile jurisdiction but inside a future Lincoln growth tier, the
County should consider adopting and applying “build-through” standards.  The build-
through model includes provisions that are intended to facilitate a later transition to
urban densities when city services are extended, including: A preliminary plan lot
layout that accommodates first phase subdivisions on a portion of the land area with
rural water and sewer systems, and shows how future urban infrastructure will be built
through the land to permit further subdivision and annexation when appropriate.  He
said he would also like to see the following language deleted on Page 7.13: Areas not
designated for acreages should remain agriculturally zoned and retain the current
overall density of 32 dwellings per square mile (1 dwelling unit per 20 acres).  In
response to a question from Schorr, Heier said the “build-through” concept did not
exist before 1999 and it has never been in place in the County.  Krout said it is



Page 4 BOC/STAFF/09/20/2011

suggested that as the City and County plan for long-term growth, areas that are
outside the growth tiers but are in a drainage basin and may eventually be served by
Lincoln’s sewer and water should be designed with the same “build-through” standards
that are already in place in the City.  Heier said he does not believe it is appropriate in
the County, outside the City’s three-mile jurisdiction.  Krout asked Heier whether he
would be willing to limit the deletion to the following sentence: For areas outside of
the Lincoln Three mile jurisdiction but inside a future Lincoln growth tier, the County
should consider adopting and applying “build-through” standards., noting the
remainder of the language refers mostly to areas in the City.  Heier asked the Planning
Department to provide a map depicting those areas.

Chapter 8 Community Facilities

This chapter includes information on the rural fire and school districts (see Pages 8.5
and 8.8).

Chapter 9 Parks, Recreation and Open Space

A section was added regarding county recreational amenities (see Page 9.13).

Chapter 10 Transportation

This chapter serves as the 2040 Lincoln Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO)
Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP), the blueprint for the area’s transportation
planning process over the next 30 years.  There are references to the rural road
network on Pages 10.14-10.16; Page 10.43-10.45; and Page 10.63.  The South and
East Beltways are discussed on Pages 10.38-10.39.  A map of the county trails system
was also included (Page 10.28).

In response to an inquiry from Smoyer, Krout said the City will be looking at existing
and additional bike lanes in the downtown area in the future.

Chapter 11 Energy and Utilities

This new chapter discusses energy uses and potential for renewable energy resources
and energy conservation.  Rural and town water services are discussed on Page 11.9. 
Rural and town wastewater services are discussed on Pages 11.11-11.12.

Chapter 12 Plan Realization

This chapter provides detailed descriptions of land uses and growth tiers and includes
links to rural communities (see Page 12.5).



Page 5 BOC/STAFF/09/20/2011

Schorr noted Heier expressed interest at the September 15th Staff Meeting in changing
the land use designation for land in the vicinity of Highway 2 and 148th Street from
agricultural to commercial/industrial, which would impact the Village of Bennet.  She
said she apprised Pat Rule, Bennet Village Clerk, and Rule said she would like to take
the issue before her Board when they meet on September 28th.  Rule said it is
something Bennet would be interested in looking at, noting Bennet’s Comprehensive
Plan was last updated in 2008 and there have been changes on the Bennet Village
Board and Planning Commission since it was last discussed.  Schorr said she is hesitant
to make a change in designation without input from Bennet and suggested the Board
schedule a meeting with their Village Board and Planning Commission within the next
six to ten weeks.  Heier said the land is currently shown as Agricultural Residential
(AGR) and believes there should be an indication that commercial/industrial
development is a possibility before more development takes place.  Hartzell noted the
Board has scheduled a public hearing on this matter on October 11th.  She said
property owners within a one mile radius of a proposed land use change must be
notified ten days in advance so they will need clarification of where the change could
occur by the end of September.

NOTE: A copy of the Draft LPlan 2040 is on file in the County Clerk’s Office.  It is also
available at: http://lincoln.ne.gov/city/plan/lplan2040/index.htm. 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

A. Legal Opinion Regarding the “20-Acre Rule” for Acreages

MOTION: Heier moved and Smoyer seconded to request a legal opinion on what
procedures would need to be followed to change the Comprehensive Plan
and Lancaster County Zoning Regulations with regards to the minimum
lot size for a single-family dwelling in Agricultural (AG) zoning district. 
Heier, Smoyer and Schorr voted aye.  Raybould voted nay.  Hudkins was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 3-1.

 4 PAYDAY LENDER LEGISLATION - Kit Boesch, Human Services
Administrator

Kit Boesch, Human Services Administrator, discussed legislation held in the
Legislature’s Banking Committee (Legislative Bill 553) that would regulate payday
lenders and create a database that would be used to enforce current laws, rules and
regulations regarding the industry and create annual reports.  She also presented a
fact sheet regarding payday lending and a proposed Credit Union Quick Cash Program
that could serve as an alternative (Exhibit C). 



Page 6 BOC/STAFF/09/20/2011

In response to a question from Heier, Boesch said the typical payday lending customer
is middle class, with an annual income of just under $50,000.  Most are in their mid
30's and are employed and have children.  She said an Omaha study showed the
highest users of payday lending institutions are teachers.

Smoyer said he has received inquiries from state senators and other interested
individuals on whether the County has taken an official position on this matter. 
Boesch said it has not and said she does not testify on matters before the Legislature
without the permission of the County Board. 

RETURNING TO ITEM 2A

Eagan said the Lincoln Journal Star Newspaper has requested a copy of the legal
opinion request.  He noted the legal opinion request is covered by attorney-client
privilege (keeps communications confidential).  The Board approved the request.

ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. 2012 Legislative Priorities

There was consensus to approve the list of legislative priorities (see agenda packet).

B. Citizen Recognition

Item was held.

C. Coast2Coast Prescription Card Update

Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief Administrative Officer, reported there have been 1,001
claims paid through the period of July-August, 2011, noting an additional 243 claims
were submitted within the last week.  She said she anticipates the County will receive
its first revenue check from Coast2Coast by the end of September.  Thorpe also
reported that the County’s National Association of County Officials (NACo) Rx card is
still active, with 381 claims submitted last month, even though NACo was sent a letter
of termination.  The Board decided to resend the letter with a copy of to Chris
Rodgers, NACo Second Vice President. 



Page 7 BOC/STAFF/09/20/2011

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

B. Correspondence Regarding a Motocross Racetrack on West Wittstruck
Road (Exhibit A)

Raybould agreed to contact Joe Kelly, County Attorney, and Mike Thew, Chief Deputy
County Attorney, regarding the concerns expressed in the letter and will report back.

C. Report on the Chair and Vice Chair’s Meeting with the County
Engineer

Schorr said she and Heier met with Don Thomas, County Engineer, and discussed 
questions that had been submitted in writing by Raybould.  She said they will share
the responses with Raybould.  Thomas is still researching the cost of inventory on
hand and the amount of work performed in-house versus work contracted with the
private sector.  Schorr said Thomas indicated he is reducing the number of districts
and making changes to job classifications to reduce costs.  Thomas also indicated a
willingness to have an audit.

 5 LABOR NEGOTIATIONS - Mark Koller, Personnel Director; John Cripe,
Classification and Compensation Manager; Nicole Gross, Compensation
Technician; Tom Fox, Deputy County Attorney

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Heier seconded to enter Executive Session at 4:17
p.m. for the purpose of protecting the public interest with regards to
labor negotiations. 

The Chair restated the motion for the record.

ROLL CALL:  Smoyer, Raybould, Heier and Schorr voted aye.  Hudkins was absent
from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.  

MOTION: Heier moved and Smoyer seconded to exit Executive Session at 4:29
p.m.  Heier, Raybould, Smoyer and Schorr voted aye.  Hudkins was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 6 ACTION ITEMS

There were no action items.

 7 CONSENT ITEMS

There were no consent items.



Page 8 BOC/STAFF/09/20/2011

 8 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. 2012 Legislative Priorities
B. Citizen Recognition
C. Coast2Coast Prescription Card Update

Items A-C were moved forward on the agenda.

 9 PENDING

There were no pending items.

10 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

A. Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA) Budget Monitoring
Committee - Smoyer

Smoyer said he urged LIBA to support the County’s legislative proposal to reduce the
county employee pension match for new employees.

B. General Assistance (GA) Monitoring Committee - Hudkins, Raybould

Raybould said they discussed pharmaceutical costs, formularies and difficulty in finding
appropriate substitutions for certain psychotropic medications.  She said they also
discussed the need for legislation to extend 2011 LB 465 (eliminate provisions relating
to eligibility of non-United States citizens for public assistance) to include GA.

Eagan noted they are beginning the process to review the GA Guidelines.

11 EMERGENCY ITEMS

There were no emergency items or other business.

12 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Heier moved and Raybould seconded to adjourn the meeting at 4:31
p.m.  Raybould, Smoyer, Heier and Schorr voted aye.  Hudkins was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0

__________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk






















